24-CV-0654

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA COURT OF APPEAL

Clerk of the Court
Received 03/24/2025 02:04 PM
Filed 03/24/2025 02:04 PM

24-CV-0654

Robert Newton

Appellant

v.

2023-CAB-007227

Annette Grajny (Dorfman), et al

Appellee

Appeal from the Superior Court of the District of Columbia, Civil Division

Hon. Yvonne Williams

BRIEF OF THE APPELLANT, ROBERT NEWTON

Chidinma Iwuji, # 478118
419 7th Street, NW, Suite 405
Washington, D.C. 20004
Cell: 571-276-2136
Office: 202-370-0202
Email: iwujicm@gmail.com
Appellant, Robert Newton

RULE 28(a)(2)(A) STATEMENT

I. STATEMENT OF ISSUES:

1. Whether the trial court abused its discretion in denying Appellant's motion for an extension of time to file an appeal from its order granting Appellee's motion for summary judgement and concluding that Appellant's complaint was frivolous and delusional without evidence.
2. Whether the trial court's failure to provide proper notice of the dismissal order constitutes excusable neglect.

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case is a medical malpractice case in which the Appellant was implanted with manmade neurosensor with a radio frequency identification by the Appellees which was discovered when the Appellant went through exploratory surgery and analyzed by a forensic lab. One of these objects is still in the custody of the forensic lab and will be produced for viewing by anybody who cares to. Appellant filed his complaint Pro Se on November 27, 2023, after this discovery on September 10, 2020. This complaint was dismissed as being untimely and frivolous. Pursuant to **D.C. Code section 16-2802(b)**, Appellant served his pre suit notice letter on September 2, 2023. This paused the statute of limitation for an additional 90 days. The latest the Appellant would have filed his complaint would have been December 1, 2023, thereby filing the complaint before the expiration of the statute of limitation.

The second reason why the lower Court dismissed the Appellant's complaint is that it is frivolous. The Court cannot assume that a complaint is frivolous without ascertaining what evidence the complainant has to prove such complaint. What most Courts do is to dismiss the case without prejudice and give the Appellant an opportunity to put more meat on the bone, especially where the litigant is Pro Se. The lower court dismissed the Appellant's case and did not give him notice of dismissal whether by mail, email or e-service and Appellant has evidence that none of these medium of communication was used to communicate the dismissal to him until after the 30-day appeal period has expired. **See Appendix Pg. 5-6.** He only got notice when he went for a scheduled hearing on the case only to find out the hearing was vacated, again without communicating the vacation to him. He followed the advice of the Court clerk and went to the civil division clerk to try and reschedule the hearing. On getting there, he was told that the case was dismissed on March 11, 2024. The Appellant went for that hearing on April 12, 2024, by which time the 30-days has run. The clerk advised him that he can still file a notice of appeal within 30-day period since he just got notice of the order, that he should just note on the notice the date he knew about the order of dismissal. Appellant followed her advice.

III. STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Appellant filed his original complaint Pro Se on November 27, 2023. The initial conference was scheduled on March 1, 2024. The Appellant filed a response opposition to Appellees' joint motion to dismiss on February 28, 2024. On February 22, 2024, the Court issued an order continuing the initial scheduling conference to April 12, 2024.

On March 22, 2024, the Appellant and his assistant went to the Court house to file his surreply to the Appellees motion to dismiss because he was having problems with the e-filing system. While

Appellant was filing his opposition, he inquired from Ms. Clark, who is one of the civil division clerks on duty that day, if there are any new filings in the docket and she answered no but confirmed that the next event on the docket is the hearing on April 12, 2024. Apparently, it is either the order of March 11, 2024, was docketed on April 12, 2024, or the clerk did not know her job. The first assumption seems to be more plausible because it was not e-filed. Appellant normally received e-service notification from the Court but a view of his email screen for the dates between February 29, 2024, through April 12, 2024, there were no emails or notifications from the Superior Court. **See Appendix Pg. 3-4**, screen shot of Appellant's two email addresses.

On April 12, 2024, Appellant went to the Court house to use the law library computer to do the remote hearing. As he was checking in with the Courtroom clerk, Mr. Lenny Rambert, when he was told by Mr. Rambert that the hearing has been cancelled and that he should go to the civil clerk's office and reschedule. The clerk did not know the case was dismissed because he told the Appellant to go and reschedule the hearing. Appellant went to the civil division's clerk's office with his assistant, Ms. Barbara West, and spoke to Ms. Clark, civil division clerk, regarding rescheduling the hearing as he was instructed by Mr. Rambert.

Ms. Clark told Appellant in the presence of Ms. Barbara West that his case has been dismissed and went ahead and printed the order for him. Ms. Clark also informed the Appellant that he had 30 days from that date, i.e., April 12, 2024, to file a notice of appeal but to explain on his notice of appeal form that he received the order late. **See Appendix Pg. 1-2, Ms. Barbara West's affidavit.**

The Appellant was not notified by the Court of the dismissal of his case or the cancellation of the scheduled hearing until April 12, 2024, when he was told that his case was dismissed. On April 12, 2024, the time for him to notice an appeal has expired. And there was no email from the Court to the Appellant attaching the dismissal order or order vacating the hearing. **See Appendix 5-6.** Appellant physically appeared in the Court on the scheduled date of hearing only to find out that his case has been dismissed. All this time Appellant was a Pro Se litigant. Appellant heard and received for the first time on April 12, 2024, that his case was dismissed and the order dismissing his case. He was advised by Ms. Clark who printed the order for him that he had 30 days from April 12, 2024; to file an appeal, Ms. Clark's advice was also confirmed by the notice of appeal form she handed to the Appellant.

On April 12, 2024, at approximately 3:00 pm, Appellant and his assistant, Ms. Barbara West, reviewed all of Appellant USPS Informed Delivery notifications starting from March 11, 2024, to April 12, 2024, and found none. Appellant and Ms. Barbara West also made inquiries with USPS Consumer Affairs as to any mails from the D.C. Superior Court during that period. Mr. Newton had signed up for informed delivery with USPS. This enables USPS to scan the envelopes of incoming mails and email you a capture of the envelopes they receive for a recipient on that day. At the request of Mr. Newton, USPS checked their system. And the result was none from D.C. Superior Court between March 11, 2024, through April 12, 2024. **See Appendix Pg . 7-70**

DCCA Rule 4 section 5 (A) (ii) states that Superior Court could extend the time for filing an appeal if that party shows excusable neglect or good cause. The Appellant has shown excusable neglect and good cause. First and foremost, it was not his fault that the clerk sent the email to the

wrong email address. **See Appendix Pg . 5** Secondly, he was a Pro Se litigant, and he followed the instructions given to him by Ms. Clark regarding time and how to appeal. Appellant is a Pro Se litigant who depended on the advice of the civil division clerk regarding time to appeal of which she told him is 30 days and because he did not get notice of the order at all, and it was the fault of the Court.

IV. STANDARD OF REVIEW

The D.C. Court of Appeals reviews the lower court's denial of motion for extension of time to file an appeal for abuse of discretion. This standard requires the lower court to make its decision based on a firm factual foundation. A trial Court' decision may be deemed an abuse of discretion if it lacks a valid reason or if the stated reason is not supported by a specific factual predicate.

See *In re Estate of Yates, 988 A.2d 466 (D.C. 2010); Ventura v. McDonalds Welburn Mgmt., 154 A.3d 103 (D.C. 2017), In re AK. V., 747 A.2d 570 (D.C. 2000)*

V. ARGUMENT.

In *District of Columbia v. Watkins, 684 A.2d 395 (D.C. 1996)*, the court found that the failure to receive timely notice of the judgment due to the court clerk sending notice to the wrong address constituted excusable neglect. The court re-entered judgment allowing the District to file a timely appeal, emphasizing that the actual act of mailing notice to the proper address was essential for the computation of appeal time. Also, in *District of Columbia v. Watkins, 684 A.2d 395 (D.C. 1996)*, This Court held that, "whereas here, it was established that the clerk of the court failed to mail notice of the entry of the order to the last known address of record of the

District, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in finding unique circumstances warranting setting aside its original order."

The Court denied the Appellant's motion for an extension of time to file a notice of appeal pursuant to **D.C. Ct. App. R. 4 (a) (5) (A)** in conjunction with **Superior Court Civ. R. 77(d)** and **D.C. Ct. App. R. 4 (a) (7) (B)**. The Appellant argues that pursuant to **Superior Court Civil Rule 77(d)**, the Superior Court Clerk has a duty to mail notice of orders and judgments entered on the docket, failing to do so is a "mistake" which entitles Appellant to relief. Notwithstanding this duty, however, **Rule 77(d)(1)** also provides that "[l]ack of notice of the entry by the Clerk does not affect the time to appeal or relieve or authorize the Court to relieve a party for failure to appeal within the time allowed, except as permitted in the Rules for the District of Columbia Court of Appeals." **Super. Ct. Civ. R. 77(d)(1). District of Columbia Appellate Rule 4(a)(5)(A)(ii)** states that "[t]he Superior Court *may* extend the time for filing the notice of appeal if: ... that party shows excusable neglect or good cause." (emphasis added). Relying on *District of Columbia v. Watkins*, 684 A.2d 395 (D.C.1996), appellant argues that pursuant to the authority granted by **D.C.App. R. 4(a)(5)(A)(ii)**, a "trial Court" may extend the time for appeal. Also, the Court did not consider the fact that the Appellant was given a handbook which is supposed to be a guide for Pro Se litigant. And in this handbook, the 30-days appeal limitation time was included but provision of **Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure section 77(d)** was not listed. Also, there is no provision in the handbook advising Pro Se litigants not to act on the advice of Court workers. Any ordinary person who is not an attorney will believe that Court worker will know the rules of the Court and their advice should be one to depend on.

The Honorable Court failed to consider the fact that the order dismissing the Appellant's case was issued on March 11, 2024, and Appellant went to the civil clerk office to file his surreply on

March 22, 2024. Appellant specifically asked the civil division clerk, Ms. Clark, if anything new was filed in the docket, and she answered no. She would have told him about the dismissal and the vacation of the hearing if it was docketed. Ms. Clark, the civil division clerk, did not find in these items in docket. The Appellant, in order to make sure his surreply was in fact docketed, two days later, went back to check the docket and there was no order of dismissal or order vacating the scheduled hearing on the docket, hence attending the scheduled hearing on April 12, 2024.

The Court's ruling that the Appellant's motion is untimely is disingenuous. The Court failed to acknowledge the part the Court played in the untimeliness of this motion. Appellant would not be in this situation if the Court officials had done their job. The Court wants the Appellant to be the person to continue to suffer for the incompetence of the Court staff and these doctors. The Court did not consider the whole mosaic of the circumstances leading to the Appellant filing motion for extension. Appellant is a registered e-file user, and he would have received notification if the order was e-served or docketed when it was issued as he had received earlier notices from the Court. If the Court e-served or docketed the order on March 11, 2024, or even on April 11, 2024, the Appellant would have received it unless the filer physically removed the Appellant from the service list. **See Appendix Pg. 3-4, id.** Appellant email screen shot for the times he received notice from e-service, the letter from USPS answering Appellant's inquiry regarding mail from the Court and affidavit of Ms. West, Appellant's assistant. These exhibits were filed with the motion for extension in the lower Court.

In Minor v. Springfield Baptist Church, 964 A.2d 205 (D.C. 2009) This Court held: "In order for this court to meaningfully review the court's exercise of discretion, unless the record otherwise indicates the basis for the trial court's ruling, the trial court must make findings of fact and explain

its reason(s) for either granting or denying a Rule 60(b) motion requesting relief for excusable neglect or good cause. *See Johnson v. Lustine Realty Co., Inc., 640 A.2d 708, 709 (D.C.1994)* (holding that trial court abused its discretion by not making the necessary inquiry and in failing to address two factors that bore directly on the Rule 60(b) motion, *See Reid v. District of Columbia, 634 A.2d 423, 425 (D.C.1993)* ("A review of the record indicates that in denying appellants' motion ..., the trial court did not consider the factors enumerated in Rule 60(b)(1) rule 60 (b) motion and summarily denied appellants motion. In the case at bar, the Judge did not make any findings of fact and did not establish the factors enumerated in *Pioneer Investment Services Co. v. Brunswick Associates LTD, 507 U.S. 380 (1993)*,"

Pursuant **D.C. App. R. 4, subd. II(a) (4)**, which states in pertinent part that "A judgment or order is deemed to be entered when it is entered in the civil docket by the clerk. When a judgment or final order is entered or decided out of the presence of the parties and counsel, and without previous notice to them of the court's decision, such judgment or order shall not be considered as having been entered, for the purpose of computing the time for filing a notice of appeal, until the third day after notice thereof has been mailed to the parties or counsel by the Clerk of the Superior Court. . . .", Appellant received the order dismissing his case on April 12, 2024 after physically appearing in Court for a scheduled hearing. Pursuant to **D.C. App. R. 4, subd. II(a) (4)**, his clock will start running from April 12, 2024, for the purpose of computing the time for filing a notice of appeal which will bring him to May 13, 2024, as the due date for the appeal. Appellant complied with the 30-days limitation time for appeal if this is the right interpretation of this rule, then Appellant's appeal is timely since he filed his appeal on May 10, 2024, with the motion for extension of time. The lower Court made its decision in the absence of parties and counsels. Court did not docket or e-file the order since Ms. Clark did not see it on the

docket on March 22, 2024, and Appellant did not see it on March 24, 2024. Appellant only had knowledge of the order on April 12, 2024.

Appellant disagrees with the Court's interpretation of **D.C. Sup. Ct R. 77(d)** which provides in pertinent part: "Reopening Time to Appeal. The Superior Court may reopen the time to file an appeal for a period of 14 days after the date when its order to reopen is entered, but only if all the following conditions are satisfied: (A) the court finds that the moving party did not receive notice under Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure 77(d) of the entry of the judgment or order sought to be appealed within 21 days after entry; (B) the motion is filed within 180 days after the judgment or order is entered or within 14 days after the moving party receives notice under Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure 77(d) of the entry, whichever is earlier; and (C) the court finds that no party would be prejudiced." Appellant believes that that order was entered into the docket on the day of the hearing on April 12, 2024. This is because if the order was entered into the docket before that date, he would have received notice from the Court as an e-service recipient. Secondly, the Appellant did not receive the order by mail, email or e-service within 21 days of issuance of the order.

Appellant filed his motion for extension with notice of appeal within 180 days of receipt of the order. Appellant believes that the provision in **D.C. Sup. Ct. R. 77 (d)(B)** which states: "or within 14 days after the moving party receives notice under Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure 77(d) of the entry, whichever is earlier" refers to order to reopen the time to appeal and not the order from which the Appellant is appealing from. The Court interpreted it as referring to the original order sought to be appealed from. If this is the case; the 14 days rule does not apply to this case because Appellant motion for extension is not for extension of time to appeal after the Judge has reopened the time to appeal.

The Court failed to consider the prejudice provision of **D.C. Sup. Ct. R. 77 (d)(C)**, which the Court is mandated to consider. The rule provides that: “but only if all the following conditions are satisfied”. The Court did not satisfy the prejudice condition as required by this rule.

Obviously, the Appellant will be extremely prejudiced by the Court’s denial of his motion for an extension of time to file appeal. It should be noted that this delay is not as a result of anything that the Appellant did.

Other circumstances surrounding this motion for extension which the Court did not consider are the fact that the Court did not consider the information the Appellant received from Ms. Clark, who is the civil division clerk who printed out the order on April 12, 2024, for the Appellant. She also gave the Appellant the notice of Appeal which also had 30 days limitation time for appeal in it. On the day Appellant filed his Pro Se Complaint, he was given “the hand book for people who represented themselves in civil case”. The provision of **D.C. Ct. App. R. 4(a)(7)(B)** and **Superior Court Civil Rule section 77(d)**, which the Honorable Judge referred to in her order denying Appellant’s motion for extension of time was not indicated in that handbook. The Appellant followed the instructions on this handbook to the letter while representing himself. He was never late in any of the filings and service required of him even though the Appellees have six attorneys the Appellant had to deal with. At the time of Ms. Clarks advice, the Appellant was still a Pro Se litigant and relied on the advice of Ms. Clark in believing that he had 30 days from the date he received the order to file notice of appeal. The Court of Appeal held in ***Gooch v. Skelly Oil Company, 493 F.2d 366, 369-70 (10th Cir. 1974)***, that “lack of knowledge of the entry of judgment occasioned by failure to receive the clerk's notice does not, without more, constitute grounds for a finding of excusable neglect”. In the case at bar, the Appellant did take proactive actions. 1). on March 22, 2024, when he went to file his surreply, he asked the clerk if there were

any new filings in the docket to which she answered no. Two days later, Appellant searched the docket to make sure his surreply was docketed and viewed the docket but did not see the order dismissing his case. 2) he followed the advice of the civil division clerk that he had 30 days from the date he received the order to file his notice of appeal which he did within 28 days. 3) he followed the handbook he was given by the civil division clerk while litigating his case. All these actions show good faith.

In the case of *Admasu v. 7-11 food store # 11731G/21926D,108 A .3D (D.C. 2015)*, the Court of Appeals agreed with the Appellant stating: “Admasu argues that his case meets the standard for excusable neglect and the Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) abused her discretion in holding that there was no excusable neglect to warrant an extension of the fifteen-day deadline. We agree that the ALJ abused her discretion by not adequately considering all of the relevant factors for making a proper determination of excusable neglect. We remand the case for a determination consistent with this opinion”. In the case at bar, the lower Court did not adequately consider all the relevant factors for making a proper determination of excusable neglect, e.g., Appellant’s reliance on Ms. Clark’s advice and the fact that he went to the civil division on March 22, 2024, and inquired from Ms. Clark if there were any new filing in the docket and Ms. Clark said no. **See Appendix Pg. 2** Also, the Court did not consider that appellant never missed a deadline on any of his filings.

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