IN THE  
**DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA COURT OF APPEALS**

---



Appeal No. 24-CV-0654

---

Clerk of the Court  
Received 04/25/2025 09:17 AM

Robert Newton,

Appellant

v.

Annette Grajny (Dorfman), et al

Appellees

---

*Appeal from the Superior Court for the District of Columbia  
(The Honorable Yvonne Williams)  
Case No. 2023 CAB 007227*

---

**BRIEF OF APPELLEES**

---

\*Rachel I. Viglianti, Esq. (DC Bar No.: 984340)  
[rviglianti@gleason-law.com](mailto:rviglianti@gleason-law.com)  
Barry A. Harris, Esq. (D.C. Bar No.: 1601214)  
[bharris@gleason-law.com](mailto:bharris@gleason-law.com)  
11 North Washington Street, Suite 400  
Rockville, Maryland 20850  
301-294-0737 (Fax)

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

## **ARGUMENT SUMMARY**

Mr. Newton glosses over the factual flaws of his original case and presents a limited/narrow argument on appeal. Mr. Newton attempts to convince this Court that the Superior Court erred in denying his Motion for Leave to Late File Appeal in this case by alleging multiple irregularities that occurred, which prevented Mr. Newton from timely filing his Notice of Appeal.

Mr. Newton incorrectly states that, as a *pro se* plaintiff, he is allowed to rely upon the Clerk of the Court and the District of Columbia Court of Appeals *Representing Yourself in a Civil Appeal* guide. However, there are two fatal flaws in

that statement. First, it is well settled in the District of Columbia that parties cannot rely on off the record communications with non-judicial employees who provide incorrect advice to constitute good cause. *See Frazier v. Underdue-Frazier*, 803 A.2d 443, 444 (D.C. 2002). Second, Mr. Newton did not file his Motion for Leave to Late File His Appeal as a *pro se* party. Mr. Newton hired Chidinma Iwuji, Esquire, an attorney, to file his motion for leave. Clearly Ms. Iwuji knew that the time to file an appeal had passed before she filed Mr. Newton's motion, otherwise she would have just filed the appeal. The law is clear. Mr. Newton's Motion for Leave was absolutely barred by statute and the judge had no discretion to grant the motion even if she had believed Mr. Newton proved good cause for not filing a timely appeal. Thus, Judge Williams' Order must be affirmed.

## **ARGUMENT**

### **I. Judge Williams appropriately denied Mr. Newton's Motion for Leave to Late File Notice of Appeal.**

Mr. Newton's Motion for Leave to Late File Appeal is time barred and borders on the frivolousness of his original Complaint. While Mr. Newton alleges multiple irregularities leading to him not being aware that the case was dismissed until April 12, 2024, which even if true, he cannot overcome case law, the Superior Court Rules of Civil Procedure, or the District of Columbia Appellate Rules. Thus, Judge Williams' Order denying Mr. Newton's Motion for Leave to Late File Appeal must be affirmed.

**A. D.C. Court of Appeals Rule 4(a)(7)(B) barred Judge Williams from utilizing her discretion in her decision to deny Mr. Newton's motion.**

The Superior Court entered an order denying Mr. Newton's Motion for Leave to Late File Appeal on March 11, 2024. The Order was docketed on the same date. *See* Appx. 8, Register of Actions – 2023-CAB-007227. Mr. Newton alleges that he was not notified by the Court that the case had been dismissed until April 12, 2024. *See* Plf. Mot. for Leave. He argues that the following irregularities caused him to miss the appeal deadline:

- When he went to file his response to Defendants' joint motion to dismiss his complaint, Ms. Clark, a civil clerk, incorrectly informed Mr. Newton that no new orders had been entered since February 22, 2024. *See* Plf. Mot for leave;
- On April 12, 2024, Ms. Clark informed Mr. Newton the case had been dismissed and provided Mr. Newton with the order and notice of the case dismissal. *Id.* at ¶¶ 5-7;
- The email containing the Order was sent to an incorrect email address. *Id.* at 9;
- On April 12, 2024, Mr. Newton alleges that “[t]he clerk advised him that he can still file a notice of appeal within 30-day (sic) period since he just got notice of the order, that he should just note on the notice the date he knew about the order of dismissal.”<sup>4</sup> *See* Plf. Brief at 5.

Based on the above alleged irregularities, Mr. Newton argues that Judge Williams abused her discretion when denying Mr. Newton's Motion to Late File His Appeal.

---

<sup>4</sup> This argument was not raised in Mr. Newton's motion for leave to late file his appeal.

Mr. Newton incorrectly relies on D.C. Ct. App. R. 4 and *Dist. of Columbia v. Watkins*, 684 A.2d 395, (D.C. 1996), discussed *infra*, to support his claim for good cause. Rather than discuss D.C. Ct. App. R. 4 in its entirety, Mr. Newton provides selective citations to the Rule that benefit his argument. Mr. Newton relies on D.C. Ct. APP. R. 4(5)(A)(ii) to state that the lower court *could* extend the time for filing an appeal if there were excusable neglect and good cause. Plf. Brief at 7-8.

As with D.C. Super. Ct. R. Civ. P. 77, discussed *infra*, Mr. Newton misconstrues D.C. Ct. App. R. 4 by extracting its provisions from their intended context, thereby distorting the rules' fundamental legal principles. Mr. Newton relies on Rule 4(a)(5)(A)(ii) while ignoring the remainder of the Rule. Rule 4(a)(5), Extension of Time, states "(A) The Superior Court may extend the time for filing the notice of appeal if: (i) a party files the notice of appeal no later than 30 days after the time prescribed by Rule 4 (a) expires; *and* (ii) that party shows excusable neglect or good cause." *Id.* (emphasis added). This aspect of the Rule, while, on its own, precluded the lower Court from granting Mr. Newton's motion. Moreover, the remainder of the Rule focusing on civil appeals lends further support to prove that the lower court did not have discretion to grant Mr. Newton's motion.

D.C. Ct. App. R. 4(a)(6) clarifies that for the purpose of filing an appeal, an order signed outside the presence of the parties and counsel is considered to have been served on the fifth day (March 16, 2024) after the order was entered on the docket. Rule 4(a)(6)

read in conjunction with the entirety of Rule 4(a)(7), *prohibit* the lower court from granting Mr. Newton's motion for leave.

Rule 4(a)(7) states that a court may reopen the time to appeal for an additional 14 days,

*but only if all the following conditions are satisfied: (A) the court finds that the moving party did not receive notice under Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure 77(d) of the entry of judgment or order sought to be appealed within 21 days after entry; (B) the motion is filed within 180 days after the judgment or order is entered or within 14 days after the moving party receives notice under Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure 77(d) of the entry, whichever is earlier; and (C) the court finds that no party would be prejudiced.”*

Rule 4(a)(7) (emphasis added).

Mr. Newton's argument that the phrase “or within 14 days after the moving party receives notice under Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure 77(d) of the entry, whichever is earlier” refers to “the order to reopen the time to appeal and not the order from which the Appellant is appealing from[,]” is nonsensical in and of itself and when the Rule is read in its entirety. Plf. Brief at 12 (internal quotation marks excluded). Appellees agree that Judge Williams could have, but was not required to, reopen the time for Mr. Newton to file an appeal had Mr. Newton: (1) filed a motion within 14 days of receiving notice of the order (April 26, 2024, 14 days after April 12, 2024) requesting the court reopen his time to appeal and (2) had good cause for missing the original appeal deadline.

Mr. Newton concedes that he received a copy of the Order on April 12, 2024. Plf. Brief at 6 (stating the clerk printed the order for Mr. Newton on April 12, 2024). *See also* Plf. Appx. at 1 ¶ 4, Sworn Affidavit of Barbara West (stating the clerk handed Mr. Newton a copy of the order). As noted, *supra*, Rule 4(a)(7) only allows a judge to grant a Motion for Leave to Late File Appeal if *all* the conditions listed in the Rule are met. Per Rule 4(a)(6), Mr. Newton was provided notice on March 16, 2024. However, whether Mr. Newton received notice of the order prior to April 12, 2024, is irrelevant because he admits notice on April 12, 2024, and still failed to file a timely Notice of Appeal by April 26, 2024. The clerk handed Mr. Newton the Order on April 12, 2024. *See* Plf. Appx. at 1 ¶ 4, Sworn Affidavit of Barbara West. Thus, Judge Williams would have had discretion to reopen the time for Mr. Newton to file a Motion for Leave to Late File His Appeal had the motion been filed by April 26, 2024, 14 days after Mr. Newton had definitively received the order. After that 14-day period expired, Judge Williams was barred from granting Mr. Newton's motion.

Additionally, Judge Williams found that Appellees would be prejudiced by allowing Mr. Newton to late file his appeal. Judge Williams held that “[Mr. Newton’s] Complaint is frivolous and insufficient to state any claim upon which relief may be granted[,]” thus granting Mr. Newton’s motion “would undoubtedly prejudice Defendants by permitting [Mr. Newton] to further litigate his frivolous Complaint in the

District of Columbia Court of Appeals.” Appx. 7, Judge Williams’ Order-MTD at FN 1.

**B. D.C. Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure 77 does not provide Mr. Newton with an avenue to late file his appeal.**

Mr. Newton argues that “pursuant to **Superior Court Civil Rule 77(d)**, the Superior Court Clerk has a duty to mail notice of orders and judgments entered on the docket....” (emphasis in original). Plf. Brief at 9. To further support his argument, Mr. Newton relies on *Dist. of Columbia v. Watkins*, 684 A.2d 395, (D.C. 1996), which required the court clerk to mail an order to the last known address of the parties. When the clerk inadvertently mailed the Order to an incorrect address, the Court held that that constituted excusable neglect. However, the facts of *Watkins* are not on point with the facts of the instant case or the Rules of Civil Procedure that apply in this case.

The *Watkins* case went to trial in 1993 and went to the Court of Appeals in 1996. The *Watkins* Court denied Defendant’s post-trial motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict and docketed the order on October 5, 1993. The clerk sent the order to the Defendant’s old address. Defendant did not learn of the order until December 21, 1993, when Mr. Watkins’ attorney called to inquire about payment of the judgment. At that time, the Courts were required to mail Orders to the parties. Mr. Newton argues that the Clerk’s failure to mail a copy of the Order to

his last known address is equivalent to what occurred in *Watkins*. As noted, *supra*, Mr. Newton argues that D.C. Super. Ct. R. Civ. P. 77(d) requires the clerk to mail the order to his last known address. This is an incorrect interpretation of the law. D.C. Super. Ct. R. Civ. P. 77(d)(1) provides that service must be made as provided by Rule 5(b). In 2022, the D.C. Superior Court’s e-filing system went live. Rule 5(b)(2)(E) was updated to incorporate e-service as a way to serve the parties. *Id.* Rule 5(b)(2)(E) states that “[a] paper is served under this rule by...(E) sending it to a registered user using the court’s electronic-filing system....” *Id.* While the Rule says service is not effective if the filer or sender learns that it did not reach the person served, Mr. Newton has provided no proof that he did not receive the Order. Mr. Newton was a registered user of the e-filing system and had been receiving filings via the e-filing system. *See Appx: 9, D.C. Complaint package extract at 17-19, 21-22* (showing e-filed date stamps for Mr. Newton’s filings that he filed prior to the order dismissing the case). *See also, Plf. Brief at 5.* As Mr. Newton was a registered user of the Court’s e-filing system, the clerk was not required to mail Mr. Newton the order dismissing the case.

Mr. Newton provides screenshots of his emails to support his claim that he did not receive the order. However, he does not provide the full context of his emails. Plf. Appx. at 3-4. The emails from Plf. Appx. page 3 shows a focused inbox for an unknown email address. It does not show his entire inbox or his deleted items, junk,

or other folders where emails may be stored, nor does it show any filings received from the e-filing system, despite his admission that he was receiving filings from the e-file system prior to the Order in question. Plf. Brief at 5. Additionally, another unknown email address on Plf. Appx. page 4, shows only those emails containing “[Matthew.Banaitis@dcsc.gov](mailto:Matthew.Banaitis@dcsc.gov).” See Plf. Appx. page 4 (search bar showing the search term “[Matthew.Banaitis@dcsc.gov](mailto:Matthew.Banaitis@dcsc.gov).”) Nonetheless, Mr. Newton provides the evidence that the order was emailed and mailed to him on March 11, 2024. As an exhibit to his motion in the lower court, Mr. Newton provided an email from Danielle V. Godwin, Judge Williams Law Clerk that confirmed the order was mailed to the address listed for him on the order and emailed a copy to [johnjddoe24@outlook.com](mailto:johnjddoe24@outlook.com), the email address he was using for this case. Appx. 10, Godwin Email. The fact that another email went to the incorrect address and bounced back to the court is immaterial.

As Mr. Newton has provided no proof that he did not receive the Order dismissing his case, he cannot prove good cause or excusable neglect, and Judge Williams’ ruling must be affirmed.

**II. Mr. Newton lacked good cause and excusable neglect to support his motion.**

Assuming arguendo, that this Court determines that Judge Williams had discretion to grant Mr. Newton’s motion for leave, Mr. Newton did not and cannot

prove he had good cause for Judge Williams to grant his motion. Mr. Newton relies on three factors to support his claim for good cause. First, Mr. Newton relies on the claim that he did not receive the order of dismissal until April 12, 2024, which has been fully briefed, *supra*. Second, Mr. Newton relies on the misinformation he claims the civil clerk provided him, and finally, Mr. Newton relies on “inaccurate information” in the District of Columbia Court of Appeals *Representing Yourself in a Civil Appeal* handbook. None of these provide good cause for Mr. Newton missing the deadline to file a Motion for Leave to Late File His Appeal; thus, Judge Williams’ ruling must be affirmed. Mr. Newton, through counsel, did not raise alleged reliance on alleged advice from the civil clerk, or the *Representing Yourself in Civil Appeal Handbook* in his motion for leave to late file his notice of appeal. *See* 05/10/2024 Motion for Leave. Failure to raise factual issues when litigating in the trial court allows the issue to be properly disregarded on appeal. *See D.C. v. Helen Dwight Reid Educ. Found.*, 766 A.2d 28, 31 (D.C. 2001); *Pajic v. Foote Props., LLC*, 72 A.3d 140, 145 (D.C. 2013); *Thompson v. United States*, 322 A.3d 509, Nos. 20-CO-0294, 22-CO-0312 (D.C. Sept. 5, 2024); *see also Johnson v. Fairfax Vill. Condo. IV Unit Owners Ass'n*, 641 A.2d 495, 502 (D.C. 1994) (“Issues not raised first in the trial court generally will not be considered on appeal.”).

Further, it seems clear that Mr. Newton did not rely on any information provided to him by the Clerk or within the District of Columbia Court of Appeals *Representing Yourself in a Civil Appeal* handbook.

Had Mr. Newton relied on the information contained within the handbook and the information allegedly provided to him by the clerk, Mr. Newton would have filed an appeal within 30 days of definitively receiving notice of the Order. Had he done that and then hired Ms. Iwuji, he would have an argument that he relied on the aforementioned advice of the clerk and/or the handbook.<sup>5</sup> However, he did not. Rather than file an appeal, Mr. Newton hired Ms. Iwuji to file a motion to late file appeal. He did not retain Ms. Iwuji to handle an appeal on the merits of the case. He simply retained her to late file his appeal. *See Plf. Mediation Statement* (stating Ms. Iwuji does not know if this case is appropriate for mediation because the only relief being sought is for Mr. Newton to late file his appeal.)

**A. A party's reliance on information provided by a court clerk does not constitute extraordinary circumstances that equate to good cause or excusable neglect for missing a deadline.**

Mr. Newton claims “extraordinary circumstances” because the civil clerk, Ms. Clark informed him, on March 22, 2024, that no new orders were filed since

---

<sup>5</sup> Appellees are not conceding that his reliance on the Clerk and handbook would constitute good cause for Mr. Newton to late file his appeal, this argument is strictly to prove Mr. Newton did not rely on the aforementioned sources.

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